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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of
SITI MAURYA CABLE NET PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of SIT1 MAURYA CABLE
NET PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements™).

In gur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (‘Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at 31st March 2022,
and its loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company’s ‘Revenue from Operations’ include broadcasters’ share in subscription income from
pay channels, which has correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance
with the requirements of Ind AS-115, ‘Revenue from contract with customers’. Had the Management
disclosed the same on net basis, the ‘Revenue from Operations’ and the ‘Pay Channel, carriage
sharing and related cost’ each would have been lower by Rs 2,277.29 lakhs for the year ended 3 Ist
March 2022 and the loss would have remained the same as currently reported.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder,
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and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAP’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Key audit matter

Provisioning for Expected Credit Loss ("ECL’)

Trade receivables comprise a significant portion of the current financial assets of the Company, As at
March 31, 2022 trade receivables aggregate Rs 730.14 lakhs (net of provision for expected credit

losses of Rs 414.28 lakhs).

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets.

Since the Company has revenue streams which are dissimilar, the management has identified different
classes of trade receivables basis the customer profile and nature of service provided or item sold. The
management regularly assesses each class of trade receivables for recoverability. Provision for ECL is
created by the management considering the recovery trends noted for the respective class, adjusted for
forward looking estimates. Additional provision is created for the receivables specifically identified as
doubtful or non-recoverable,

Estimation of the rates at which provision for ECL is to be created for each revenue stream, involve
significant degree of judgment and estimate.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have performed the following procedures for assessment of sufficiency of the provisioning for

ECL:

* Obtained the ageing of trade receivables and discussed the key receivable balances, considering if
any correspondence is available to establish the management’s assessment of recoverability of
such dues.

» Analysis of the methodology used to determine the provision amount for the current year.

e Assessing key ratios which include collection periods and days outstanding.

¢ Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables after the balance date on a sample basis.
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2. Key audit matter

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions

The Company has material uncertain tax positions including matters under dispute which involves
significant judgment to determine the possible outcome.
Refer Note No 41 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

How our audit addressed {he key andit matter

We obtained details of completed assessment and demands received during the financial year from
management. We also obtained the opinion of legal experts to challenge the management’s underlying
assumptions in estimating the tax provision and the possible outcomes. The legal experts considered
legal precedence and other rulings in evaluating management’s position on these uncertain tax
positions. Additionally we considered the effect of new information in respect of uncertain tax
positions as at April 1, 2021 to evaluate whether any change was required to management’s position
on these uncertainties.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information., The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this audit report.

QOur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

When we read the other information included in the Annual Report if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter of those charged with

governance.
Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs (financial position), loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
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provisions of'the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Cofnpany’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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- & Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit .
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitativé materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid any remuneration
to its directors during the year and therefore the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the

Act are not applicable to the Company.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

ay

b)

d)

e)

g)

ii.

iii.

We have sought and except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act; ‘

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (JFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 23" day of May
2022 as per Annexure B expressed modified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone financial statements; ‘

the Company did not have any long-term contracts inbluding derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 3 1st March 2022;

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2022;

(a) the Management has represenfed that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no fund
" (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
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Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) the Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
{which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries’™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii} of Rule 11{g}, as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement,

v.  the company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Mentbership Number 064579
UDIN: 22064599 AT NOLH 4999

Place: Ko]katd
Date; 23rd day of May 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of SITI MAURYA CABLE NET PRIVATE LIMITED
of even date) ‘

1. (a)(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full parﬁculars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and equipments and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The company has a program of physical verification of it's Property, Plant and equipments
in a phased manner of three years other than set top boxes, which are in possession of
customers/third parties and distribution equipment comprising overhead and underground
cables and other equipment. Management is of the view that it is not possible to physically
verify these assets due to their nature and location, Pursuant to the program, certain property,
plant and equipments were physically verified by the management during the year, No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, other than for
physical verification of set top boxes and distribution and other equipment referred to above,
the frequency of verification of property, plant and equipments is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The company does not own any immovable properties and hence no title deeds are held in
the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(&) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{(Prohibition) Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. '

2. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature of its business.
No material discrepancies were noticed in the physical stock as compared with the book

records.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable,
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According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not made any
investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and not granted unsecured
loans to other parties, during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and

* investment made, and guarantees provided by it, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed
deposits as at March 31, 2022 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the maintenance of cost records has been
prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of products and services of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
accounts maintained by the Company in this connection and are of the opinion that, prima
facie, the records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

complete.

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed
statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Cess and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us the details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Entertainment Tax, Goods and Service Tax and Value Added Tax which have
not been deposited as on 31st March, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to which { Forum where dispute is
Statute dues (Rs in | the amount | pending '
Lakhs) - | relates

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 443 AY.2014-15 | Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 9471 AY.2015-16 | Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax (Appeals)

[ncome Tax Act, | Income Tax 2.19 | A.Y.2016-17 | Commissioner of Income
1961 Tax (Appeals)
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Name the | Nature of the | Amount | Period to which | Forum where dispute is
Statute dues (Rs  in | the amount | pending

Lakhs) relates
Income Tax Act, ! Income Tax 2.85| A.Y.2019-20 | Deputy Commissioner of
1961 Income Tax
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 90.85 | A.Y.2020-21 | Deputy Commissicner of
1961 Income Tax

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. ‘

(a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

{b) The Compény has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order
is not applicable.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company. .

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its

subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(2) of the
Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.
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(a)} No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

{c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year (and upto the date of this report), while determining the nature, timing and
extent of our audit procedures.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it;
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 & 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard
(AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant

rules.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) The company is not required to appoint the internal auditor as per the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
him/her. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.
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19 On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets

' and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicatirig that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

20 () There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other
than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the
Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the

year.

(b) There is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub-
section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Agarwal K & Co. LLP
Chartered Acgountants

a = o
| -
,I___AA g‘f +EI00018 *
Gourav“‘
Partner DALY
artner

. ‘Membership Number 064579
UDIN: 22.0645F F ATNOLH 4499

Number: E300016

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23rd day of May 2022
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 3(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements® section of our
Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of SITI MAURYA CABLE NET PRIVATE LIMITED
of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
scction 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

" We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SITI MAURYA CABLE
NET PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contrel stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
‘maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,

as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if

such controts operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. :
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal I"mancml Controls Over Financial Reporting

‘A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to prov1de
- reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial contral over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in condltlons or
that the degree of comphance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the followmg

material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2022,

The Company’s internal financial controls over preparation of financial statements with respect to
presentation and disclosure of ‘Revenue from operations’ in accordance with the requirement of
IndAS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’, were not operating effectively which has
resulted in a material misstatement in the amounts recognised as ‘Revenue from operations’ and ‘Pay
channel, carriage sharing and related cost’ including the relevant disclosures in the. standalone
- financial statements, while there is no impact on the net loss for the year ended 31 March 2022,

A ‘material weakness’® is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the Company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or

detected on a timely basis.
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In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements as at 31 March, 2022, based on the internal financial control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
andl except for the effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022.

We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the nature,
timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the
Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, and the material weakness as mentioned above,
has affected our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company and we have issued a
qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements.
For Agarwal K & Co. LLP
Charterecd Accountants : i

Membership Number 064579
CUDIN: 2206UST AgnNoLHy 399

Place: Kolkata
Date: 23" day of May 2022
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
CIN: U93000WB2012PTC184542
Bulance Sheet as at March 31,2022

( ¥ thousands)
Asat Asat
Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A, Assets
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 231,349 271,939
(b) Capital work-in-progress 3 12,147 13,159
(c) Other intangible assets 4 3281 9410
1) Financial nssets
(i) Other financial asse1s 5 3,165 3,423
(¢} Delerred tax assets (Net) ] 31,689 31,717
Suletolal of Non-current assets 281,631 329,648
2. Current sssets
(a) loventories 7 945 1,146
(b Fonaneiul nssets . ’
1i) Trade receivables 8 73.014 74673
hiy Cash and Cash Equuvalents 9 20,38Y 32,050
(iif) Bank Balance otherthan (ii) above 10 31,305 10,000
(iv) Loans i 1,190 1,452
(v) Other finuncial assets 12 5,585 22,850
(¢} Current tax assets (Net} 13 10,670 2,334
(d) Other current assets 14 14,120 24,947
Sub-total of Current assets 157,218 170,052
Total assets 438,848 499,700
B, Equity and linbilities
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 15 90,280 90,280
(b) Other equity 16 145,327 178,657
Sul-total - Equity 235,606 268,936
Linhilities
1. Non-current kabilities
1a) Fmanetal labiigs
(1) Borrowings 17 - -
1) Other lingneial habilities 18 - -
() Provistons 10 3,656 2,989
{¢) Other ron-current liabililies 20 555 25,257
Sub-totak - Nop-current liabilities 4,211 28,246
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financizl liabilities J
{i) Borrowings 21 - 6,202
{ii) Trade payables 2
Total outstanding dues of ereditors for micro enterprises and small
enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than mnicro, small and medium T
enterprises 123,593 134,557
(ii#) Other financial liabilities 23 14,942 15,227
(b} Other current liabilities 24 60,202 46,311
(¢) Provisions 25 205 220
Sub-total of current liabilities . 199,031 202,518
“Total equity and liabilitics 438,848 ' 499,700
1&2

Swnmury of significant accounting policies

The acewmpany ing notes are an integral part of these linancial statements,

‘Iis is the balunce sheel reterred to n eur repon of even daly

Partner i
Membership Number: 064579

Upive 90 26U STT Ao Lpv999

Place - Kolkata
Date - 231d day of May 2022

Far and on bebalf ol the Board of Directors of
S1IT Muuryn Cable Net Peivate Limited

Muno Kumar
Director
DIN: 03449709

DIN: 60569816

Krishna Kumar
Sr. Manager (F&A}




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
CIN: U93000WB2012PTC184542
Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(¥ thousands)
Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue
[ Revenue from operations 26 436,951 513,769
I Other income 27 11,656 4,237
III Total Income (I+11) 448,607 518,006
IV Expenses
Purchases of traded goods 28 294 580
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories of traded goods 29 201 (1)
Carriage sharing, pay channel and related costs 30 328,564 348,210
Employee benefits expenses 31 26,088 24,913
Finance costs 32 818 1,885
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 33 77,297 98,303
Other expenses 34 48,647 38,887
Total expenses 481,910 512,777
YV Profit /{L.oss Yhefore exceptional items and tax (33,303) 5,229
¥1  Exceptional ltems - -
VII Profit/{(Loss) belore tax (33,303) 5,229
VHI Tax Expenses 28 1,410
{a}) Current Tax - 6,523
(b) Deffered Tax 28 (5,113}
(c} Short / (Excess) Provision for earlier years -
IX Prefit /{Loss) for the year {33,330) 3,819 '
X Other Comprehensive Income 35 0.23 (1)
Total Comphrensive Income for the year (33,330) 3,808
Earning Per Share 36
Basic (3.6%9) 0.42
Diluted (3.69) 0.42
Summary of significant accounting policies 1&2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date
For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Char lg.n.d Au,ountants

. E300016

Membership Number: 064579

UriN-922 04U DS ATNLH UG9S

Place « Kolkata
Date - 23rd day of May' 2022

For and on behall of the Board of Directors of
SITI Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Surentka Kumar Agarwa[
Director

DIN: 00569816

Ol

Krishna Kumar

Sr. Manager (F&A)

e

Muno Kumar
Director
DIN: 03449709

iﬁl’r&a)ﬁl,:al w

ompany Secretary

e «,\‘v
I\“
C/' ‘(\
: patna-i i‘-‘ 3
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
CIN: U23000WB2012PTC184542
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2022

{ ¥ thousands)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Cash Flow firom operating activities:
Net Profit before taxation, exceptional item & prior period iteins (33,303) 5,229
Adjustment for ;-
Depreciation 77,297 98,303
Provision for Retirement Benefit 742 675
Unrealised forex (gain )/ loss 52 32
Interest Paid & Borrowing cost 818 1,885
Bad Debts written off (Net of Provisions) - -
Provision lor doubtful debts & Advances (783} -
Excess provisions writien back (8,112) (2,324}
Provision for STB Churn's . 28,676 4,727
Interest on Fixed Deposit / Income Tax Refund/Others 1,565 1,343
Operating profit before working capital changes 66,952 109,868
Change in working capital
Increase/( Decrense) in Trade payables {2,121} (%0,955)
Increasef{ Decrease) in other Non current Liabilities (24,702) 66
Increasef(Decrease) in Other current finacial labilities (285) 1,163
Increase/( Decrease) in Qther current liabilities (14,785 (3,528)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in Trade receivable 1,659 39,964
Decreased ( Increase) in Inventories 201 (1)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in Long-term loans and advances given 2358 (36)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in Short-term loans and advances given 262 6,647
Decrease/ ( Increase) in Other current financial assets 17,266 {13,148)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in Other current assets 10,827 7,328
Cash Generation from Operating Activities before exceptional item 55,530 57,368
Exceptional Items - -
Cash Generation from operating activities after exceptional item 55,530 57,368
Net Prior Period Adjustment - -
Cash Generation from Qperating Activities after Prior Period Ltem 55,530 57,368
Income Tax Paid ( including TDS) 8,336 §,069
Net Cash Generation from operating activities 47,194 49,299
B. Cashflow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Fixed Assets/ Capital work in Progress (29.,565) (14,627)
Investment in Fixed Deposit (21,305) (10,000)
Interest on Fixed Deposit/ Income Tax (1.565) {1,343)
Nel Cash deployed in Investing Activities (52,434} (25,970}
C- Cashflow From Financing Activities:
Intergst Paid (818) (1,883)
Pricipal Repayment of Lease liability - (14,707)
Shorl Term Borrowings Taken / Repayment (6,202) (422)
Net Cash Generation from Financing Activities (7,020) (17,014)
Net Increase/{(decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (12,261) 6,315
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 32,650 26,335
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 20,389 32,650
Cash & Cash Equivalent include { T thousands) (X thousands)
Cash Balance 2,223 1,826
Bank Balance 11,297 26,187
Cheque in Hand 6,869 4,637
Cash & Cash Equivalent Reported 20,389 32,650

Membership
LUDIM. L2 0LV ETH AT NOLHYTFTT

Place - Kolkata

Date - 23rd day of May' 2022

A

For and en behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dirzctor
IN: 00569816

Krishna Kumar
Sr. Manager (F&A)

SITI Madrya Cable Net Private Limited

e umav

Surendt Kumar Agarwal  Mune Kumar

Director
DIN: 03449705,

Brakhsh Jindal
dmpany Secretary
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Company Overview
I SIT] Maurya Cable Net Private Limited ("the Company") was incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company
is Multi System Operator (MSO} engaged in the distribution of lelevision channels through digital cable distribution network, broadbanc
services and other related services. The Company is a subsidiary of Indian Cable Network Company Limited which is subsidiary of Siti
Netwark Limited and hence Siti Network Limited is the utlimate holding company.

2 Summary of Significant Aceounting Policies

&) Basis of preparation
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS ) as prescribed under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with relevant rules of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. :

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following :

a) Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;
b) Non-current assets held for sale — measured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to sell;
¢) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Current Vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is ;

a) Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating eycle;

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

¢) Expecled to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

¢} All the other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when :

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b} It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities respectively.

Functional and Presentation Currency ‘
The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees {INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial

information presented in INR has been rounded ofl 1o the nearest thousand as per the requirements of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial stalements are consistent with those of previous year, unless otherwise
mentioned, and are explained below-

b) Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities on the date of
the financial statements and reported amounts of Income and Expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current or future periods. The most significant techniques for estimation
are described in the accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying
the Company’s accounting policies arise in relation to the following and also in relation to other accounting policies as stated elsewhere.

(i) Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, Plant & Equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheel at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.




{ii) Intangible Assets ‘
Software and VC Cards are included in the Balance sheet as an Intangible asset where they are clearly linked to long term economic benefit

" for the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimate:
uselul lives, '

(iti) Revenue Recognition

The Marketing and Placement income is recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of contract with the Broadcasters. Sinc:
this is a continuous service, therefore in few cases the Income is recognised following the trend of past basis in the absence of agreemen
pending renewal, '

(iv) Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed to b
probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific circumstances o
each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature comple»
and can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the
financial statements,

(v) Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 :

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts ol
receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in
the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used
fnternal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The Company has
perlormed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be
recovered.The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements,

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised at cost\deemed cost less accumulated depreciation or impairmment losses if any, incurred to
bring the asset to the present condition and location. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and
rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable
expenditure on making the asset ready {or its intended use and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up
to the dale the asset is ready for ils intended use.

The cost of a sell~eonstrucled item ol praperty, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials, direct labour and any other costs
directly atiributable to bringing the item to its intended working condition and estimated costs of dismantling, removing and restoring the site
an which it is located, wherever applicable.

Il significant parts of an jtem of properly, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The items of spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments that satisfy the definition and recognition ecriteria of Property , Plant
and Equipment is classified under Capital work in progress. Capital Work in progress comprises of the cost of fixed assets that are not put to
use at the reporting date. .

Set top boxes are treated as part of Capital Work In Progress till at the end of the month of activation, after which the same are depreciated.

(ii) Depreciation on Tangible Assets .
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. Leasehold land is amortized over the effective period
of lease. The details of estimated life for each category of asset are as follows:

Asset - Estimated useful life based on SLM
Buildings 60 years

Computers and Data Processing Equipment 3 vears

Plant and Machinery ' 8 years

Set Top Boxes 8 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8§ years

Studio Equipments 13 years

Office Equipments 5 years

Soltwares which are an integral part of Property, Plant and 6 years




{iii) Disposal of Assets

~ An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from th
~ continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined a
the difterence between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

{d) Intangible Assets .

Intangible assets comprises of VC Card, Cable Television Franchise, Bandwidth Rights and Softwares, Intangible Assets acquired separatel
are measured on initial recognition ai cost. Following initial recognistion, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisatio:
and accumulated impairment losses, il any.

Asset Estimated useful life based on SLM

Software and VC Cards 6 years

e) Impairment of Assets

(i) Financial Assets

For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Company has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts created i
earlier years and has also considered the fact that the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been booked as per prepai
model of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after analysing each head separately) for DA!
customers. Further, the Company has analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenue customer (including Marketing &
Placement Income customers) and other than carriage revenue customer primarily because the characteristics and historical losses trend wa:
difterent in these two streams. :

(ii) Non-Financial Assets

The Carrving amount of the [ixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-36 ot
“Impairment of Assets™ prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules as amended from lime to time, o determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment test is performed for an individual asset, unless asset does not generate cash flow:
that are largety independent. Otherwise the assets are tested for Cash Generating Units (CGUSs). An Impairment loss is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss if the assets or CGU's carrying amount exceeds the greater of Fair value less cost or Value in use. Reversal o
Impairment are recognised through Statement of Profit and Loss except those routed through reserves.

(f) Leases

Where the Company is a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the assst are classified as operating
leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and Equipment. Lease income on an operating lease is recognized it
the staterment of profit and loss on monthly rental basis, wherever applicable over the lease term. :

Where the Company is a lessee

The Company, as a lessee. recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the contract conveys the right
control the use ol an identified asset.

The contraet conveys the right to control the use ol an identified asset, if' it involves the use of an identified asset and the Company has
substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of:
use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or before the
commencement date plus any iaitial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured al cost less any accumulatec
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use assets i
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

g) Borrowing Cost :
Borrowing Costs are the interest or the other cost which the entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of the funds. These include
interest expense calculated using the Effective interest method as per Ind AS 109. Borrowing cost which are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a "Qualifying Asset" are included in the cost of the asset when it is probable that they will result ir
the future ccanomic benefit to the entity and it's cost can be measured reliably,




 h) Inventories

Inventories are valued as follows-

Stock in trade & Stores and spares valued at cost on weighted average method or at net realisable value whichever is lower.

Net reatisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated cost:
necessarv to make the sale,

i) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer for an amount that reflect:
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value o
consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of discounts, rebates, outgoing taxes on sales of goods or services.

(i) Subscription Income
Subseription income includes subscription from subscribers/ Cable Operators relating to cable TV. Revenue from Operations is recognisec
on accrual basis based on underlying subscription plan or agreements with the concerned subscribers/ Cable Operators.

(ii) Marketing and Placement Income
Marketing and Placement Income is recognized on accrual basis over the terms of related agreement/ negotiations provided that there is ne
significant uncertainity regarding.the realisable amount of consideration.

(iti) Income From Activation of Services

The Company has adopted Ind As 115 and accordingly these financial results are prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement
principals laid down in Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™. In pursuance of the same, Income from activation of digital
cable services is recognised as revenue over the initial contract period.

{iv) Income From Broadband Services
Income from broadband services (net of applicable taxes and duties) is recongnised on time proportion basis,

{v) Advertisement Income
Advertisement Income is recognised on accrual basis from the date(s) of insertion of advertisements based on the terms specified in the
release orders.

{vi) Other Services
Income from dark fiber leasing isirecognized on acerual basis as per terms of the respective contracts.

(vii) Sales of Goods

Revenue from sale ol goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership ol the goods have been passed 1o the

buyer. usually on delivery of the goods. The company collects sales taxes, value added taxes and Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of
- the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing 1o the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

i) Foreign Currency Transaction

Transaction in foreigh currency is recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the transaction date {s). Transaction remaining unsettled, is
translated at the rate prevailing at'the end of the financial year, The exchange rate difference arising there-from are adjusted in the Statement
of Profit & Loss. :

I) Financial Instruments _

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. _

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and [inancial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities aré initially measured at fair value. The transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
tssue ol financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly
atributable o the acquisition of inancial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Prolit and Loss are immediately recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest income or
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.




Compound Financial Instruments

. Separation of instrument into its liability and Equity component is made at the time of Initial recognition. The fair value of liability
component establishes its initial carrying amount which is then deducted from the fair value of the instrument as a whole to arrive at the
residual amount being recognised us the equity component. The fair value of the liability component at the initial recognition is the Presen
value ol the contractual stteam of future cash flow discounted at the market rate of Interest that would have been applied to the instrument o
comparable credit quality with substantially the same cash flow.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Fingncial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order
to coltect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial assel
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any ol the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Financiat liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other payables maturing
within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments,

(iii} Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire,

(iv) Ofisetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a [egally enforceable right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

1) Retirement and other employee benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed retirement benefit
schemes are deall with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to
those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.For defined benefit retirement schemes. the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being earried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement
gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net
interest an the net defined benelit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs.

Pasl service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or
termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as reduced by
the tair value plan assets.

*~
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 {(m} Taxation

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in th
Statement of Profit and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it furthe
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws the
have been enacted.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on' differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in th
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance shee
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets ar
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can b
uiilised.

Deferred tax is caleulated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based o
the Lax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

{n} Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand. e-wallet balance. deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits including the
Bank Overdraf.

(0} Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(i} General

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event
which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated. Each provision i
based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provision:
are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

(a) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated to other
parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) as a resull. the entity has created a valid expeclation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o settle a provision are expected o be recovered from a third party, a receivable is
recogrised as an asset ifitis virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(i} Contingent Liabilities .

A disclosure lor contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an
outtlow of resources. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made.

(p) Earnings Per Share . _
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the periods presented.

(q} Segment Reporting

The company is a Multi System Operator providing Cable Television Network Services and Other Related services which is considered as
the only reportable segment. The company's operations are based in India. '




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Statement of Change in Equity for the vear ended March 31, 2022

A Equity Share Capital

( ¥ thousands)

Balance at 1st April'2021

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to
prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current reporting
period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at 31st
March 2022

90,280

90,280

(T thousands)

Balance at 1st April'2020

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due to

Restated balance at
the beginning of the

Changes in equity
share capital during

Balance at 31st

prior period errors current r'eporting the current year March 2021
period
90,280 - - - 90,280
B Other Equity ( ¥ thousands)
Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Securities , . .
Premium Reserve Retained Earnings Total Other Equity
Balance as at April 01, 2021 70,000 108,657 178,657
Profit / (L.oss) for the year - (33,330) (33,330)
Other Comprehensive [ncome - 0 ‘ 0
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (33,330) {33,330)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 70,000 75,327 145,327
Balance as at April 01, 2020 70,000 104,849 i 174,849
Profit / (Loss) for the year - 3,819 3,819
Other Comprehensive Income - (11) (n
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 3,808 3,808
Balance as at 31 March 2021 70,000 108,657 178,657

This is the statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For Agarwal K & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Partner

cation No.: E300016

Membership Numbe1 064579
UDIN-22.864 X939 AT NoLHYF9T

Place - Kolkata

Date - 23rd day of May' 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
SITI Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Sfirendrd Kumar Agarwal

irector
DIN: 00569816

Krishna Kumar

Sr. Manager (F&A) '

\).\\SQ\QMWV

Muno Kumar
Director
DIN: 03449709

Jai Prakash Jindal
Company Secretary
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March' 2022
{ T thousands)

Note 4 ; Intangible Assets

Particulars Software & VC Cards
Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross Carrying Amount as at 01 April 2020 57,869
Additions 162
Closing Gross Carrying Amount as on 31st March'21 58,031
Accumulated Depreciation 40,999
Amortisation for the year 7,622
Closing Accumulated Amortisation 48,621
Closing Ne¢ Carrying Amount as on 31 st March'21 9,410

Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying Amount

Opening Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2021 58,031
Additions 13
Closing Gross Carrving Amount as on 31st March'22 58,046
Opening Accumulated Amortisation 48,621
Amortisation charge for the year 6,144
Clesing Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment 54,765
Closing Net Carrying Amount as on 31st March'22 3,281
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* Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

" \ Notes to financial statements for the year ended 3[st March, 2022
{ 2 thousands)
' . 5 Other Financial Assets Asar As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Security deposits
Unsecured, considered good 3,165 3423
3,165 3,423
6 Deffered Tax Assets / (Linibilities) As at Asat
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Deferred tax liability
Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortization charged Jor the financial reporting (12,299) (5,146)
Gross deferred tax liability (12,299) (5,146}
Deferved tax nsset
Impact of Unabserbed depreciation /camied forward losses 7,705 -
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 10,427 25,521
Impuct of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in
the current year but ullowed flor tax purposes on paymem basis 1,258 1,048
Gross deferred tax asset 19,391 26,571
Netdeferred tax assedf (liabilities) 31,689 3,717
7 Inventories As at Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Stores and spares 945 1,146
{Vnlued at lower of cost or net realisable value) 945 1,146
As at As at
8 Trade receivables March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured Includes Rs 255 thousand {PY Rs 9782 thousand) receivable from
entities in which director is partner , member or director) 73,014 74,673
Trade recervables considered good - Credit impared 41,428 96,684
Total 114,442 171,357
Less: Provision for Expecied Credil Loss 41,428 96,684
. 73,014 714,673
Ageing of Trude receivables outstanding as on 31.03,2022
Cwistanding lor following periods from due date of payment#
Particulars Less thun 6 months-1 1-2 years 2-3 years More thun 3 Total
months year years
{i} Undisputed - Trade receivables — considered good 36,615 9,666 8,019 894 1,083 56,277
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 1,654 19,237 1,354 14,155 14,028 41,428
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good 7,263 9,474 16,737
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in ¢redit risk - - - - - -
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired -
TOTAL 45,533 20,377 9,373 15,049 15,111 114,442
Less : Allowance for Credit Loss 41,428
Total Trade Receivables as on 315t March, 2022 73,014
Ageing of Trade receivables outstanding as on 31.03,2021
QOutstanding for following periods from dug date of paymens
Particulars L'::i:l‘:: 6 6 m:;t:ts-l 1-2 years 2-3 years MD;:;:;““ 3 Total
(1) Undisputed - Trade recervables — considered yood 45,018 4,649 16,083 8,833 90 74,673
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significam
merease e ¢redit nisk - . - - - -
() Undisputed Trade Receivables —~ eredit impaired 45.308 13,240 17.234 11,126 9,776 96.684
() Disputed Trade Receivables— considered poed -
1v) Enspaned Trade Recewables — which have significant
increase in eredit risk - - - - - d
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credil impaired -
TOTAL 90,326 17,888 33,317 19,960 9,866 171,357
Less @ Allowsnee for Credit Loss 96,684
74,673

Tatal Trade Receivables as on 318t March, 2021



Siti Maurya Cable Nev Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Y

10

Cash and bank balances As at Asat
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 2,223 1,826
(Includes Wallet balance/POS Balance Rs 733 Thousand (CY) NIL
(PY)
Cheques in hand 6,369 4,637
Balances with banks
In current accounts 903 16,187
In Fixed deposit account (with maturity less than three months) 10,389 10,000
20,389 32,650
Other Bank Balances
In Fixed deposit account {with maturity More than three maonths} 31,305 19,000
31,305 13,000
Lonns Asat As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, censidered good
Other advances 1,190 1,452
1,190 1,452
Others financinl assets As ut As
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unbilled revenue 5,585 21,907
Interest acerued but not due - 943
5,585 22,850
Current Assets (Net)
Advance tax 36,206 27,870
Less: Pravision for Income Tax 25,536 25,536
10,670 2,334
As at As at
Other current assets March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Prepaid expenses 1,504 2,985
Balances with statutory suthorities 12,216 21,962
14,120 24,947
. As at Asal
Share capital Maxch 31,2022 March 31,2021
Authorised share eapital
9(,30,000 ($0,30,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 90,300 90,300
Totnl nuthorised capiral 90,300 90,300
Issuedt share capital
90,127,970 ($0.27.976) Equily Shares of' Rs. 11+ each 90,280 90,280
T'otal issued capital 90,280 99281
Subscribed and fully paid up capital
90,27,976 (90,27,976} Equity Shaves of Rs. 10/~ each 9,280 90,280
Total paid up capital 90,280 90,280
90,280 90,280
Reconeilation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at Mar 31,2022 and March 31, 2021 are sct out below
(i) Equity Shares
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars No, of Shares | Amount (Rs.} [No. of Shares held|  Amount (Rs.}
held
Outstanding af (e beginning of the year 9,027,976 90,279,760 9,027,976 90,279,760
Tssued during the year - "
Bought back during, the year - "
Any other movement {please specify) - -
Outstanding af the end of the period 9,027,976 90,279,760 9,027,976 90,274,760

Terms & rights attached to equity shares

The company hos only one elass of equity shares having pur value of Rs 10 per share, Each helder of equity shares is entitled to one vole pet share.,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will he entitled to receive remaining assets of the company,
distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the sharehelders.

-

after disiributian af all preferential amounts The




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to linancinl statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022
Out of Equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its

holding compuny, ultimate holding company nnd their subsidizries/ associntes are a5 below:

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars No. of Shares | Amount (T} [No. of Shares held|  Amount (%)
held
Equity Shares
Indian Calle Net Cempany Limited, the holding company 4,523,016 45,230,160 4,523,016 45,230,160

45,23,016 (45,23,016) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Indian Cable Net Company Limited is subsidiary of Siti Network Limited ond hence Siti Network Limi

shargholding in the company.

Details of share holder holding more than 5% share as at March 31, 2022 and March 31,2021

ted is wilimare holding company. Siti Network Limited do not hold any

As at 31st Murch 2022 As nt 31 Mar 2021
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares | % of Holding [No, of Shares held| % of Holding
held
Maury Diginet Pyt Lid 4,504,960 49.90% 4,504,960 49.90%
Indian Cable Nel Co Ligd, 4,523,010 50.10% 4,523,016 36,10%

Shures held by promoters at the end of the year

As at 31st March 2022 As at 317 Mar 2021
%o of total % Change Y% Change
Promoter Name No, of Shares  |Shares during the year|Ne. of Shares | % of totn] Shares fduring the year
Maury Diginet Pvt. Ltd. 4,504,960 49.90% - 4,504,960 49,90% -
Indian Cable Net Co Ltd. 4,523,016 50,10% - 4,523,016 30,10% -
. Asat Asat
16 Other Equity March 31,2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Sceurities premium aceount
Balance at the beginning of the year 70,000 70,000
Balance at the end of the year 70,000 70,000
Surplus / (Deficity in the Statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginnimg of the year 108,657 104,849
Add: Profty{Loss) for the year (33,330) 3,819
Other Comprehensive [ncome b {1hH
Balanes ut the end ol the year 75,327 108,657
145,327 178,657
. Asat As at
17 Borrawings Murch 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings - .
e e As at As at
18 Other financial liabilities March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Other financial ltabilities - -
- As at Asat
13 Provisions March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 25) '
Provisicn for gratuity 2415 1,948
Pravision for compensated absences 1,241 1,041
3,656 2,989
As at Asat
20 Qther non current liabilities March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
nterest tree deposits from customers 335 25,257
’ 558 25,257
. As at Asat
21 Bursowings March31,2022  March 31, 2021
Loaus and Advances From Related Parties
Maury Diginet Pyt. Ltd. - 6,202
- 6,202

(Repayable on demand)




Siti Maurya Calle Net Private Limited
Notes-to finnneial statements for the year ended 31st Mareh, 2022

Asat Asat

T Ty | 4]
22 Trade pryables March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

- Total ouistanding dues ol micro enterprises and small
enterprises, and
= Tolal outstanding dues ol creditors other than micro, simall and

; 123,593 134,557
medium enlerprises
123,593 134,557
Ageing of Trade Payable as on 31.03.2022 {  thousands)
. Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Particulars year yeurs
MSME E - - - -
Others 111,459 1,618 3,299 7,217 123,593
Disputed dues-MSME . - - - .
Disputed dues-Cthers - - . - -
Total Trade Payable as on 31s¢ March, 2022 111,459 1,618 3,299 7,217 123,593
Ageing of Trade Payable as on 31.03.2021 { T thewsands)
. Lessthanl |y ) vears | 2.3 Years | Morcthan3 Total
Particulars yvear years
MSME . B B . R
Others 112,559 4,634 17,365 - 134,557
Disputed dugs-MSME - - - - -
Disputed dues-Others - - - - -
Total Trade Payable as on 31st March, 202 112,559 4,634 17,365 - 134,557
Asat Asat
23 Other financial linbilities March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Book overdralt 3,888 -
Creditors for cupilal goods 11,054 15,227
14,942 15,227
As at As at
24 Other Current Linbilities March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unearmed Income 146,905 17,834
Advances from customers 6,347 6,952
Liabilty for STB Churn 33,403 4,727
Payable for statutory liabilities 3,347 16,321
Payable for Contractual Liabilities - 477
Total 60,202 46,311
As at Asat
23 Provisions March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for employee benefits (Refer Note 19}
Prayvision for gratuity 191 134
Provision for compensated absences 104 86
295 220

Total




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

26 Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Subscription inconie
Advertisement income
Marketing & Piacement income
Activation charges
Broadband Network Maintanance Service
Other operating revenue
Sale of traded goods*
Other networking and management income
Other operating revenue

* Details of sale of traded goods
Sale of STB & VC Cards
Store and spares

27 Other income

Interest income on
Bank deposits
Excess Liability written back
Excess Provision written back
Scrap Sale
Written Off Debtors Realised

28 Purchases of traded goods

Spare Parts & Accessories
Card less STB with Clients

29  (Increase)/ decrease in inventories

Inventories at the beginning of the year - Traded goods
Inventories at the end of the year - Traded goods

(Increase)/Decrease

( ¥ thousands)
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
272,507 357,064
49,800 53,369
103,364 77,941
1,466 1,078
6,301 18,306
196 735
3,317 4,145
- 1,130
436,951 513,769
14 30
182 706
196 735
Year-Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,565 1,343
8,112 2,324
783 -
1,197 .
- 570
11,656 4,237
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
287 573
7 7
294 580
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,146 1,144
945 1,146
201 )

-



Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

Pay Channel Expenses

Lease Rental of Set Top Boxes
Management Charges

Commission Charges and Incentives
Lease Rental & Right to Usage Charge
VC Card Licence/Software Fees
Other operational cost

31 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and bonus
Contributions to provident and other funds
Gratuity Fund Contributions

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest on Lease Liability
Interest

Interest On Statutory Dues
Bank charges

Other Borrowing Costs

33 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation of tangible assets {Refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4)

30 Carriage sharing, pay channel and related costs

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
227,729 257,309
30,002 15,001
30,000 30,000
8,215 10,393
20,340 19,660
7,187 10,804
5,091 5,043
328,564 348,210
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
21,358 20,172
1,976 1,960
580 524
2,175 2,257
26,088 24,913
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- ' 294
673 929
119 631
27 25
- 6
818 1,885
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
71,153 90,682
6,144 7,622
77,297 98,303
-



Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022

34 Other expenses

Rent
Rates and taxes
Communication expenses
Repairs and maintenance

- Network

- Building

- Others
Electricity and water charges

Legal, professional and consultancy charges

Printing and stationery

Travelling and conveyance expenses
Auditors' remuneration

Vehicle expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility
[nsurance expenses

Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for STB Churn
Advertisement and publicity expenses
Rebate & Discounts '
Bad Debts

Less : Adjusted with Provison for Doubtful Debt

Business and sales promotion
Exchange fluctuation loss (net)
Assets/Excess provision written off
Miscellaneous expenses

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 .
4,389 4,611
694 3,249
488 512
2,162 1,200
18 24
152 22]
2,940 3,510
1,222 887
20 17
2,454 2,014
582 516
285 169
- 46
26 16
- 15,170
28,676 4,727
172 54
107 10
54,473 0 -
(54,473) - -
305 53
52 32
1,901 -
2,001 1,850
48,647 38,887




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Note No, 35 ( ¥ thousands)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FY 21-22 FY 20-21

A (1) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans as under (.23 (14.91)
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations

(ii} Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassfied to profit or loss - 3.75
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i)Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassfied to profit or loss - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 0.23 (11.16)
Note No. 36 ( ¥ thousands)

. I Year Ended Year Ended
Earnings per share 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (33,330) 3,808
Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic 9,027,976 9,027,976
Diluted 9,027,976 9,027,976
Nominal value of per equity share (%) 10 10
Earning Per Share (%)

Basic (3.69) 0.42
Diluted (3.69) 0.42

LCalle
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Fair value measurements
There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period. The Company does not have any investments, derivative financial assets and liabilitses. Hence,
Level 1 and Leve! 2 hierarchy is not applicable.

Accounting classification and fair values
The following 1able shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022:

A. Financinl instruments by category ( ¥ thousands)
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
’ Amortised Amortised
FVTPL | FVOCI cost FVYTPL FVOCI cost

Financial assers (Non Current & Current)

Amount recoverable - - [,190 - - 1,452
Security deposits (Non current} - - 3,165 - - 3,423
Unbilled revenues - - 5,585 - - 22,850
Trade receivables - - 73,014 - . - 74,673
Cash and cash equivaients - - 20,389 - - 32,650
Other bank balances - - 31,305 - - 10,000
Tatal financial assets - - 134,648 - - 145,048

Financial labilities (Nen Current & Current} . .

Borrowings {non-current,financial liabilities) - - - - - -
Borrowings {eurrent.linancial liabilities) - - - - - 6.202
Trade payables - - 123.593 - - 134,557
Other financial liabilities {current) - - 14,942 - - 15,227
Total financial liabilities - - 138,535 - - 155,987

*#The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financiz| instrumenis such as cash & cash equivalents,other bank balances shert term trade receivables, short lerm trade peyables
because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

,

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance the Company’s operations and to provide
guaraniess lo support its operations. The Company’s principal finencial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and shon-term deposits that derive direcily from ils
operations. The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Direclors reviews and agrees pelicies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below:

*

A, Credit risk
Credit 1isk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due 10 the Compaay causing financial less. The Company’s exposure
10 credit risk 15 m/luenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets measured al amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of

customers and other counterparties and incorporates this mfbrmation into its eredit nsk controls

Credit risk management
Credit risk rabing
I'he Company assesses and manages credit risk ol financial assets bused on following categuries arrived on the basis of assumptions, mpuls and tactors specific to the elass of financial

assets.

A: Low credit risk on financial reporting date
B: High credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss
Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets Life.time expected credit loss or fully provided
Low credit risk except Trade Receivable,security deposits, unbilled for

revenue and amount recoverable
Hiah eredit risk Trade receivables, security deposits, unbilled Life time expected credit loss or fully provided
igh credit nis revenue and amount recoverable for

Based on business environment in which the Company eperates, a default ona financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make payments within the agreed time period
as per contract. Loss rates retlecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering differences between current and historical econemic conditions.




( 2 thousands}

Credit rating Particulars 31-Mar-22 _ 31-Mar-2[
Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets '
Low credit risk except Trade Recervable security deposits. unbilled 51,694 42,650
revenue and amount recoverable
Trade recevables, securnty deposits, unbilled
High credit nisk . N 5
1gh credit TS revenue and umount recoverable 52,954 102,398

Concentration of {rade reccivables

‘I'he Company has widespread customers and there is no concentration of trade receivables,

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losses

Fer the purpose of camputation of expected credit loss, the Company has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts created in earlier years and has alse considered the fact that
the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been booked as per prepaid model of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability {after
analysing ¢ach head separately} for DAS customers. Further, the Company has anelysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenue customer (including Marketing &
Placement [ncome customers) and other than carriage revenue customer primarily because the characteristics and historicat losses trend was different in these two streams. The company
does not expect any further risk of credit impairment on account of pessible impact relating to COVID 19 in estimating expected credit loss provision.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables, security deposit and amounts recoverable under general approach

as at March 31, 2022 ( T thousands)
Estimared Ca.rrying
Eross Expected {net of
Ageing carrytug credit a;::lo)l:lr:rmcm
umufunl at losses pf'm‘isiun
defuult
Trade recenables 114,442 41428 73014
Security Deposit 3.165 - 3,165
Amounts recoverable 1,190 - 1.190
Unbilled Revenue 5,585 - 5,585
as at March 31,2021 { T thousands)
Estimated . :
QI Expected Carrying i
Ageing carrying credit "h":“:;:;';:
amount at losses pll-)ovision
default
Trade receivables 171,357 96,684 74,673
Security Deposit 3,423 - 3423
Amounts recoverable 1,452 - 1,452
Unbilled Revenue 22,850 - 22,850

Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

{ T thousands)

Loss allowance on Mareh 31, 2021 96,684
Changes in loss allowance {55,256)
41,428

Laoss allowance on March 31, 2022

B.Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk 15 the risk that sunable sources of funding for the Company’s business aclivities may not
Prudent hiquidity sk management implies maintaineng sullicient cash and murketable securities and
facihlies (o meet obligations when due and 1o ¢lose out market positions. M
barrowing fuciliies) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecied cush
during normal course of business as on each balance sheet date. Long-
accruals and through funding commitments from shareholders. As at eac|

payments where applicable) are summarised as follows:

(ii) Maturitics of financinl linbilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contract
significant

anagement monnars ralling torecasis of the

1erm hquidity requirement 1s assessed by the management on penodical b
h statement of financial position date, the Company’s liabilities having contractual maturines (including inierest

be available
he availability of funding through an adequate amount of commilted credil
Company's hquidity pesition (comprising the undrawn
flows Shorl term liquidity requirements compriscs ninly of rade payables and empleyee dugs arising
asis and 1s managed Wthrough el

val undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

{ % thousands})
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Contractunl maturities of financial linbilities | Less than Ot‘::‘:o More than Less than One to two More than
one year years two years one year years two years

Non-derivatives )
Borrowings (non-current,financial liabilities) - - . - - -
Borrowings (current,financial liabilities) . - - 6,202 - -
Other financial liabilities 14.942 - 15.227 - -
Trade payables 123,593 - - 134,557 - -
Total non-derivative linbilities 138,535 - - 155,987 - -




v

C.Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Company is nat exposed to such risk as Company does not have any borrowings, foreign currency transactions and does not have any derivative trasactions.

39 Capital manngement

Risk Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and provide
adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year. The Company sets the amount of capital required
on the basis ol annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and ather strategic investments The funding requirements are met through & mixiure of equity,
internal fund generaton and other non-current barrowings. The Company’'s policy is 10 use current and non-current bosrowings 10 meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company
moniters capital on the basis of the gearing tatio which is net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) . The Company is rot subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements Nel debt are non-current and current borrowings as reduced by cash und cush equivalents. other bank balances and current investments. Equity comprises all componenis
includmg other comprehensive income

( ¥ thousands)

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Cash and cash equivalents 20,389 32,650
Other bank balances 31,305 10,000
Total eash (A) 51,694 42,650
Borrowings (non cucrent, financial liabilities) - -

Borrowings (current,financial liabilities) .- 6,202
Current maturities of long-term borrowings - -

Total borrowing (B) - 6,202
Net debt (C=B-A) (51,694) (36,448)
Total equity 235,606 268,936
Total capital (cquity + net debs) (D} 183,912 232,488
Gearing ratio (C/D) -28% -16%

Classification and ineasurement of financial assets and liabilities
“I'he classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts and circumstances

existing at the date of transition

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and circumstances existing
at the date ol transition and i 1118 impracticable 1o assess clements of modified time value of money i.e. the use of effeclive interest method, fair value of financial asset at
the date of wansition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset The measurement exempuon applies for financial habiliies as well

Applying a requirement is impracticable when an entity cannol apply it afler making every reasonable efforl to do so. It 15 impracticable 10 apply the changes
retrogpectively it

a) The effects of the retrespective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable:
Iy} The retrospective application of restatement requires assumptions about what management’s intent would have been in that period:
The retrospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant estimates o’ amounts and it is impossible to.distnguish ohjectively mformation aboul those

estimates that existed at that time.
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

. Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022
40 Tax Expenses

The major components of Income Tax for the year are as under;
( thousands)

Mar-22 Mar-21
Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax - current year - 6,523

-earlier years - -
Deferred tax charge / (benefit) . 28 (5,113
Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss [(i)+(ii)] 28 1,410
Other Comprehensive [ncome (OCI) Section
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Current Tax (income) / expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans - 4

Effective tax rate - -0.08% 26.96%

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to the profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at the
Company’s eftective income tax rate for the year ended 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 is as follows:
' ( ¥ thousands)

Mar-22 Mar-21
Profit before tax (33,303) 5,229
Effective tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Statutory income tax on profit (8,382) 1,316
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 27,146 30,361
Additional allowances for tax purposes (26,470} (25,154)
Temporary differences in respect of unutilised tax losses. 7,705 -
Others / Deferred Tax effect 28 (5,113)
Tax effect for earlier years ] - -
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 28 1,410

The applicable statutory Income Tax rate is 25.17% for the FY 2021-22 (25.17% for FY 2020-21).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the deferred
tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note no-6.

Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit and loss
( ¥ thousands)

For the year ended 31 March ' Mar-22 Mar-21
Employee retirement benefits obligation (211) 178
Allowances for credit losses (7,705) Co-
Depreciation and amortisation (7,153) (7,591)
Other disaliowances - : 15,096 2,300
Total 28 - (5,113)

( ¥ thousands)

Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities) net: Mar-22 Mar-21
Opening balance 31,717 26,604
Deferred tax (charge)credit recognised in

-Statemeni of profit and loss (28) 5,113

-Recognised in other comprehensive income
Total 31,689 31,717
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31,2022

41, Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts #4 % 114,263 Thousands (Previous Year ¥ 104,991 Thousands).
## Jtincludes demands raised by statutory authorities being contested by the company % 11,294 thousands (Previous Year Z 2021 thousands)
[n additien, the company is subject to legal proceeding and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary couise of business. The company's management does not
reasonably expect that their legal action, when ultimately coneluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the company's result of operation or
financial conditions,

42 The company 15 providing the broadband services / internet services to the subseribers through Indinet Service Pvi. Lid. ("ISPL") which is wholly owned subsidiary of Indian Cable
Net Company Limied ("ICNCL™ Al the revenrue and expenses w r1 imermel services are collected/neurred by ISPL itself. [t has been mutually agreed that a portion of income
from internet services (net ol expenses) would be paid to the company for which billing 1s done by the company to ISPL. The agreement for sharing of above has also been executed.
In the eurrem financtal year the income from internel services is more than the expenses incurred and hence billing is done by the company and revenue [rom the broadband services
has been recopmsed

43 As per Section |35 of Companies Act 2013, a CSR Committee had been formed by the Company. The tunds are utilised in the activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the
Acl The utilisation is done by way of contribution towards various activities,
\a} Average net profit as preseribed under sectian 135 of the Companies Act 2013: ¥ (891) thousands (PY ¥ 2289 thousands). Accordingly amount required to be spent was NIL (PY
Rs 46 thousands).
() Amoust spent during the year NIL (PY Rs 46 thousands) by way of donatien to "Prime Minister Cares Fund”

44 Details ol dues to micro and small enterprises as defingd under the MSMED Act 2006, .
The management has identified dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) on the basis of
information made available by the supplier or vendors of the Company.The disclosures relating to amount unpaid of vendors registered under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act 2006 as on March 31, 2022 together with interest paid or payable under this Act is NIL.

45 Gratuity and other employment benefit plans
Defined contribution plan
Centribution to detined contribution plan, recognised as expense for the yeer are as under .-

Defined benelin plan
tis The detanl al' emplayee Genefit for the pertad i respect of gratuity which 1s funded delined benefit plan is as under:

. Present value of obligations { % thausands)
PARTICULARS As on 31st March 2022 As on 3]st Mar 2021
Present Value of Obligaten at the begitning of the period 2,082 1.697
Intgrest Cost 151 19
Current Servige Cosl 429 406
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits paid il any) (85) (103)
Actuarial (pains)loss 29 (36)
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 2,606 2,082
b. Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet { ¥ thousands)
PARTICULARS As on 31st March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the petiod 2,606 2,082
Fair Value of plan assets at the end of the period - -
Net Liability/{assets) recogrised in Balance Sheet and 2,606 2,082
Funded Status - Surplus / (Deficir) . (2,606) (2,082)
Best estimate for contribution during next period 482 452

{ ¥ thousands)

¢. Expense Recognised in the statement of profit & loss accour

PARTICULARS Ason 3lst March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021
Interest Cost 151 119
Current Service Cost 429 406
LExpected return on Plan Assets - -
L:xpenses to be recoprised i the Profit & loss Account 580 524
d. Otler comperhensive (income)expenses{ R e-measurement ( T thousands)

PARTICULARS As on 31st March 2022 Ason 31st Mar 2021
Cumulabve unrecognized actuarial (gain¥loss opening. B/F 250 286
Acturial {gain)loss-abliganon 29 (36)
Actunal {gain)loss-plun assets - -
Total Acturial (pain)/loss 29 (36)
Cumulative total actuarial (gain)/loss. C/F 279 250
<. Liability { ¥ thousands)

Period As on 31st March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021

Current Liability . 191 134
Non Current Liability . 2,415 | 1,948
Tolal Liability 2,606 2,082




Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

¢

["The assumptions employed by actuary for the calculalions are

tabulated.

Period As on 31st March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021
Discount rate 7.25% p.a. 7.00% pa.
Salary Growth Rate 5.00% p.a. 5,00% p.a.

Mortality

[ALM 2012-14

[ALM 2012-14

Expected ratg ol return

Withdrawal rate ( Per Annum)

5.00% p.a.

3.00% p.a.

(1t) The detail of employee benefit for the period in respect of leave encashment which is funded defined benefit plan is as under;

a. Present value of obligations

{ T thousands)

PARTICULARS As on 31st March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021
Present Value of Obligation at the beginning of the period 1,127 823
Interest Cost 82 58
Current Service Cost 237 249
Benelits paid (il any) (72) (34)
Acluarial {zains)/loss 29 51
Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 1,344 1,127

b Net Asset 7 (Liabiliy) recognized i the balance sheet

{ ¥ thousands)

PARTICULARS

As on 3181 March 2022

As on J1st Mar 2021

Present Value o Oblyaton at the end of the period 1,344 1.127
Faur Value ol plan assets at the end ol the period - -
Nel Laabiluyfiassets) recogmised 1n Balance Sheel and 1,344 1,127
Funded Stalus - Surplus / {Deficit) (1.344) (5120
Best estimate for contribution during next period - -

c. Expense Recognised in the statement of profit & loss account ( ¥ thousands})

PARTICULARS As on 3ist March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021

Intgrest Cosl 82 58
Current Service Cost 237 249
Expected return on Plan Assets - u
Expenses to be recognised in the Profit & loss Account 319 307

d, Other comperhensive (income)/expenses(Re-measurement

( % theusands)

PARTICULARS As on 31st March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021
Cumulative unrecognized actuarial (gain)/loss epening, B/F {17 ' (68)
Acturial (gain)/loss-obligation 29 51
Aclurial (gain)/loss-plan assets - . -
‘Total Acturial {gainyloss {29) 5]
" Cumulanve wial aciganal (gain)loss CrF {47) ("

<. Liabity ( 2 thousands}

Period As on 31st March 2022 As on 31st Mar 2021
Current Liability 104 86
Non Current Liab:hty 1,241 1,041
Total Liability 1,345 1.127
The ussumptions employed by actuary for the calculations are 1abulated.

Period As on 31st March 2022 As on 3Est Mar 2021
Discount rate 7.25% p.a. 7.00% pa.
Salary Growih Rale 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.
Mortality 1ALM 2012-14 1ALM 2012-14
Withdrawal rate { Per Annum) 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

u. Discount Rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Govemment Securities’ as the balance sheet as date for expected term of obligation.
b. Salary Iscalation rate is based on estimates of future salary increases taking into consideration of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

46 Payment to Auditors (% thousands}

PARTICULARS 31-Mar-22|  31-Mar-21
Statutory Audit Fees 264 240
Taux Audil Fees 132 120
Lamited Review Fues 171 156
ther Services 15 -
TOTAL 382 316

47 The Company predonimantly aperates n 2 single business segment of cable distribuion in Indionly FHenee there are no separately reporiable business or geographical segments as
per Indian Acconnting Standard ¢*Ind AS'1 108 on Operating Segments The aforesaid is 1 Jine with the way operating results are reviewed by the ¢hiet operating decision maker(s).
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financiul statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

48 Leases

4

L3

h

The Company incurred Rs 34,391 thousands for the year ended March 31,2022 towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for premises and Set Top Boxes taken on tease to condust its business in the ordinary course. The Company does not have
any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable tent as per the contract.

Value of Imparts calculated on CIF Basis { T thousands)
Partictuars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Capital Goods 11,662 -
11,662 “
Expenditure in foreign currency { ¥ thousands)
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-ivlar-21
Annual Maintenance Charges - 2,602
- 2,602

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activities globally. The company has evaluated the impact of this
pandemic on its business operations, liquidity and financial pesition and based on the management's review of current indicators and economic conditions there is no material impact
on its financial results as al March 31, 2022, However, the assessment of COVID-19 is 2 contnuing process given the uncertainities associated with its nature and duration and
accordingly the impact may be different from that estimated as the date of approval of these results. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future ecoromic
conditions. The Company however in the interest of all stakeholders is following highest level of corporate governance and has been taking e series of actions to ensure safety and
lrealth of all employees and to ensure cempliance with various directives being issued by Central/State/Municial authorities.

For Ihe year unded March 31, 2022, the *Subscription income’ included in the *Revenue from operations in these financial statements, inter alia, inclides the amounts payable 1o the
broadeasiers towards their share per Tasiff order 2017 in relation to the pay channels subscribed by the cusiomers. The aforementioned corresponding amounts (i.e Broadcaster’s
share; has also been presented as an expense in these financial statements. The said amount is Rs 2,27,729 theusands for the year ended March 31, 2022 in the standalone financial
stalements

Had (hese expenses been disclosed o net basis. the *Revenue (rom operations™ and the *pay channel and related costs” each would have been lower by Rs 2,27,729 thousands for the
yeur ended March 31,2022 i the inancial statements. However, there would nat have been any impaci on the net prafit for the year ended in the financial statements

Star India Private Limited has disputed the meentive imvoices we £ Februany 2021 agomst the bills raised on the alleged ground of violalion of the incentive agreement and has
withheld the payment ol mcentive mvaices Being aggneved. the company has liled 4 pettion belore the TOSAT agamst Star India Private Lumiied  In an mienin rehef, TDSAT has
ordered wilhhelding part payment 1o Star India Private Limited against their dues on account of "Pay Channel Cost” TOSA' has also prima facie upheld the contention of the
company. However the outcome of the dispute 15 dependent on the {inal order of TDSAT. The company 15 of the view thal no provision is required in the boaks in respect of the
Incentive receivable by the company and accordingly has not made any provision in its accounts.

Nel balances of Loans & Advances, Tradé Receivables, Trade Payables, and other assets & liabilities are subject to confirmation.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors the current assets, loans and advances shown in the Balance Sheet as en March 31, 2022 are considered good and fully recoverable, except
atherwise stated and provision for all known liabilities has been made in the accounts.

Reventue from contracts with customers

{A) Disug_grcgation of revenue ( ¥ thousands)
Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Revenue frem aperations
Sale of services

Subsenpian meome 272,307 357,064
Advertisement Imcoiy 49,800 53,369
Marketing & placement income 103,364 77,941
Activation and Sel top boxes pairing charges 1.466 1,078
RBroadband mcome 6,301 18,306
Other operating revenue
Sale of traded goods® 196 735
Other networking and management income 3317 4,145
Otlier opgrating revenue - 1,130
436,951 513,769

The Company has disaggregated the revenue frem contracts with customers on the basis of nature of services/goods sold, The Company believes that the
disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of services/goods sold has no impact on the nature, amount, timing & uncertainty of revenues and cash flows.
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(B) Contract Balances
The Company classifies the nght to consideration m exchange for deliverables as either a recewvable or as unbilled revenue.
Trade reeeivable and unbilled revenues are presented net of impairnient in the Balance Sheet,

The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities for the contracts with the customers.

{ ¥ thousands)

Particulars

Receivables, which are included in 'Trade and other receivables’

Cantract assets (Unbilled Revenue)

Contract liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

The contract assets primarily relate to the Company's rights 1o
wransferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional The coniract

obligations are yet to be satistied,

Sigmficant changes 1 the contract habiliies balances during the year are us fullows

Year Ended Year Ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
73,014 74,673
5,585 21,907
16,905 17,834
95,504 114,414

consideration for work completed but not billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are
liabilitics primarily relate to the billing recognized in advance where performance

{ ¥ thousands)

~1

31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21
Particulars Contract Contract

linbilitics liabilities
Balance at the beginning of the year 17,834 18,932
Add: Advance Income received fom 16,905 17,834
Lhe custamer during the year
Revenue recognised that is included 17,834 18,932
Balance at the end of the year 16,905 17,834

(C) Performance Obligations and Remaining Performance Obligations

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount o
and an explanation as to when the Company
has not disclosed the remaining performances as the performance abligation

Remaining performance cbligation esti
penodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

Ratio Analysis

expects ta recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in [n
s relates to contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or less.

f the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period
d AS 115, the Company

nates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts,

As at Mareh, 31

Viriance in

Parriculars Numerator Denominator " Remarks
2022 2021 N
¢n) Current Ratio Current Assels Curremt Liabilities a7 084 593
() Debi-Lauiy Rabio [ Total Debt Share holder’s Equity . 00z 100.00 [Repayment ol Debts
(o) Debt Service EBIDTA Debt Serviced 7.20 24797 “ 97 10 |Reduction m profit and principa) payment of
Coverage Ratio Joans :
1d) Retsirn on Equity PAT Averape (0.13) 0.01 1.030.37 |Loss in Current Year
Rativ Sharcholder's equity
{e) Invemtory tumover {Cost of Materials |Average Tnventories 294.48 58018 49.24 |Consumption of Materials for Repairs and
ratin Constimed Maintainance increased
() Trade Receivables  |Net Revenue Avernge Trade 5.92 543 (9.02)
Lurnover ratio from Operations _|Receivable
() Trade payables Net Expenses for |Average Trade 2.68 201 (33.39)Reduction in Trade Payable
turnover ratio which credit Payable
purchase is
renerated #8 — .
(f1) Net eapital tumaver (Total Income Waorking Capital (10,73} (li.‘)?) 32.76 |Reduction in Revenue from Operations
ralin
(1) Net prolit ratia PAT Total income (0.07) 041 1,167.73 |Loss in Curremt Year
(j1 Retum on Capital = |ERIT Average Capital {C.12) 0.02 635.58 |Loss in Cuivent Year
anployed Employed
(k] Return on NA NA NA

Iy estinet. il

i Debl Service = Primcipal Repayment + Interest Expenses

## Net Expenses for which credit purchase s wenerated
- Drepreciation and Amartisaton Expenses - Raies and laxes - Write of! of Assels - Provision for C

= Tol Expenses - Finance Costs - Employee Benefits Expense - Cost of Matena
hurn STB's - Proviston for Expected Credit |

Rebate and Discount - Bad debts - Corporate Secial Responsibility Expenditure - Exchange fuetualion loss.

ittt Tlhe Company has no Investment in current as well as last year.

Is Consumed - Cost/Purchase ol Goods Sol
.oss - Provision for doubtful advance
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»
58 The Code on Social Security, 2020 has been enacted by the Indian Parliament, which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident fund and Gratuity. The
effective date from which the changes will be applicable and the corresponding Rules, are yet 1o be notified. The Company will complete it's evaluation and will give appropriate
fmpact in the period in which the Code and the corresponding Rules becotne effective.

59 The linancrsl statements were have been approved by the Board of Dircctors in their respeetive meeting held on 23rd day of May 2022,

60 Related Party Disclusure

List of parties where control Exists
a Ultimale Holding Company
Siu Network Limited
b Holding Company
Indian Cable Net Company Limited
¢ Fellow Subsidiary Company
Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Private Limited
[ndinet Service Pvt. Lid
4 Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by KMP or their relatives*=
Maury Diginet Private Limited
Victor Distributors
Raja Cable
Raja Cable
Rai Cable
Raja Cable TV Network
RR Cable Network
Rai Cable Network
New Raja Cable
IT Agency
Maa Vaishanay Seltlite Vision
Maa Vaishnav Services
haa Yaishanav Vision
Shiva Vision
Maa Laxmi Network
Global Cable
Maa Laxmi Network
Global Cable
Maa Laxmi Network
Global Cable
Nice Network
Puja Cable
Baba Bhele Digital Network
Mahavir Star Network
Maa Rajrappa Digital Cable Network
Baba Bhole Digital Cable Network
Lovely Digital Cable Network
Puja Rani Digital Cable Network
Kashi Vishwanath Cable Network
Prakash Cable Network
Key Munagerial Personnel

Mr. Sunil Nihalani Director

Mr Sunil Kumar Maheshwari Additional Director {w.e.f. 25/10/2021)
Mr Abhyn Dey Director

My Rajeev Sharma Direclor

Mr Ragmish Kumar Dixu [irector

Mr Nizag Kumpar Sinha Dhirector

Mr Madanjeet Kumar N Ihreetor

Mr. Binod Kumar Ral Director

Mr. Muno Kumar Director

Mr. Nawal Kumar Director

Mr Atul Kumar Singh Director

Mr. Suresh Kumar Sethiya Director

Mr. Surendra Kumar Agarwala Director

Mr. Jai Prakash Jindal Company Secretary

** with whom the Company has transactions during the current year and previous year
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Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

A
Transactions with related partics

{ T thousands)

Particulars

Siti Networks Litd

Indian Cable Net
Company Ltd

Maury Diginet Pvt Lid

Indinct Service Pvt Ltd,

FY 2122 FY 20-21 | FY 2122 | FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Expenses paid on behall of 25210
Payment for purchase of material &
services 3 67,2853 107,399 47,437 53,242
Purchase of material & Services (1,647) (4,447) (58,438) {63,681) (35,637) {36,024)
Sales of service and materials ] 6.216 21,602
Payment received for sales of
services/other recoveries (13,027 {1,373)
Liabilities Taken over by (25,210)
Outstanding at the beginning of year (23,563} (19,1193  (28,870) (72,587 {19,937) (37,155} 20,229
Quistanding at the end of year (0} {23,563)| (45,234) (28,370} (8,137} {19,937) 13,418 20,229
Particulars Raja Cable New Raja Cable Rai Cable Raja Cable TV Network

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 | FY 21-22 | FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales ol service and materials 2,321 2,803 1,597 1,519 - - 554 728
Payment received for sales of
services/other recoveries (2.313) (2,923) (1.58%) (1.539) - - {548) {747)
Advances refunded to/ given (1.777) (38)
Liabilitics Taken over by (232}
Bad Debls written off (1) (92) . {33) (94)
Qutstanding at the beginning of year 1,771 £,891 117 138 33 33 315 334
Qutstanding af the end of year 1 1,771 (4) L7 {0} 33 (3) 315
Particulars RR Cable Network Rai Cable Network Raja Cable IT Agency

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 | FY 21-22 | FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Y 2(-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Payment for purchase of material and
seTvices 371 508
Purchase of material & Services (361} (466)
Sales of service and materials 549 623 1,087 1,350 172 197 1,660 1,957
Payment received for sales of
services/other recoveries (545) {633) (1,077) (1,383) (172) (200) {1,664) (1,987)
Advances refunded tof given (173)
Liabilities Taken over by {an (43) (372)
Bad Debts written ofl’ (2) {115) 1 4)
Qutstanding at the beginning of year (1,077) (1,109) |54 187 (1) 2 550 379
Qutstanding at the end of year (1,076) (1,077) 4 154 {0) (1) {5) 550

. Maa \-’msh.ulmn' Settlite Maa Vaishnav Services Maa Vaishanav Visien Shiva Vision
Particulars Yision
: FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FYy 21-22 | FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 Iy 21-22 FY 20-21

Sales ol service and materials 1,408 1711 2,987 2,802 736 [,718 (0)
Payment received for sales of
services/other recoveries (1.316} (1,756} {2,539) (2,860) (1,630 (1,778} -
Advance Refund 10/given (723)
Liabilities Taken over by (581 (233} (500)
Bad Debts written off’ 148 {19) 212 (313)
Qutstanding at the beginning of year 289 334 253 312 329 389 849 849
Qutstanding at ihe end of year (52) 289 [C1}] 253 14 329 36 849
Particulars Maa Laxmi Network Global Cable ' Mna Laxmi Network Global Cable

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 | FY 21-22 | FY 20-21 Iy 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 3,945 4,353 613 1,138 132 159 374 12
Payment received for sales of B
servicesfother recoveries (3,939 (4,186) {618) {1,069) (131) (165) (368) (139}
Advance Relund to/given (598) {435) 47)
Liabilities Taken over by (801} (36} {0)
Bad Debts writlen oif {18) (7} ) 116
Quitstanding at the beginning of year 1.612 1.445 439 370 82 87 (124) 3
Qutstanding al the end of year 2(2 1,612 (8) 439 4 82 (1) {124)
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Sitiaviaurya Cable Nct Private Limited
N(:tes to financial statements for the yéar ended March 31, 2022

Particulars Maa Laxmi Network Global Cable Nice Network Puja Cable

FY 2122 FY 20-21 | FY 21-22 | FY 20-21 FY 2122 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and inaterials 243 315 203 288 1,707 1,932 1,159 1,597
Payment received for sales of ,
servicesfother recoveries (243) (328) (201) (311) (1,737) (1,973) (1,021) (1,660)
Advance Refund tw/given (333) (269) (580) (693)
Liabilities ‘Taken aver by (186) (146) (419) (1,096)
Bad Debts written uff (8) (3) (2)
Quistanding ai the beginning of year 80 92 412 433 1,103 1,144 1,728 1,791
Quistanding at the end of vear {448} 80 (3) 412 75 [,i03 Tl 1,728

Baba Bhole Digital Netweork

Mahavir Star Network

Maa Rajrappa Digital Cable Network

Baba Bhole Digital Cable

Particulars Network

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 | FY 21-22 | FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sules ol service and materials I5 48 - 436 527 884 1,013
Payment received for sales of
services/other recoveries (15) {50} - (374} (523) (769) {1,023)
Advance Refund to/given (236)
Ltabilities Taken over by (147) (103) (137)
Bad Debts written off {602) 100 (177} 14 .
Outstanding at the beginning of year 731 733 3 3 240 236 121 131
Outstanding at the ¢cnd of year {16) 731 - 3 {12) 240 14 121

Lovely Digital Cable Network

Pujn Rani Digital Cable

Knshi Vishwan

nth Cable Network

Prakash Cable Network

Particulars Network

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 | FY 21-22 1 FY 2(-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 617 720 753 861 335 618 - -
Payment received for sales of
servicesfother recoveries (520) {726) (663) {870) {443) {606) - -
Advance Refund to/given (99) ’
Liabilities Taken over by (92)
Bad Debts wrillen ofl’ {113) {208} (188) |
Quistanding at the beginning ol year 112 118 17 126 54 83 90 90
Qutstanding at the end of year (&) 112 (2) 117 {2) 94 (1) 9(

Particulars

Victor Distributors

FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Payment for purchase of material & '
services 33
Purchase of material & Services (767)
Sales of service and materials 6,903
[Payment received for sales of (639) (6,714)
Quistanding at the beginning of year 1,647 1,458
Qutstanding at the end of year 274 1,647

61 Additional Regulatory Information detailed in clause 6L of General Instructions given in Part | of Division [ of the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished to the

extent applicable 1o the Company.
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Schedule U1 of the Companes Act, 2013 elfective from 1t Apnl 24521

Notes 1o aceount relerred 1o 1n our repent of even date is annesed

Uiy 1 - 21060.553 AT
Place - Kolkata
Date - 23rd day of May' 2022

MOLHYR 9T

For and on behalf ol the Board of Directors of

Krishna Kumar

Sr. Manager (F&A)

<

SITI Maurya Cable Net Private Limited

s

Muno Kumar
Director
DIN: 03449709

A

ai'Prakash Jindal
“ompany Secretary

Pres s period lgures have been regrouped * reclassifivd wherever necessary lo vonfirm to current penod's classificarian 1 order to comply with the requirerents of the amended
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